
United lVati(lt's

(;ENERAL
ASSEMBLY
I<'OI<'TY-SE('ONU SESSION

(~flil'ill/ N"C'lm/,I'"

1>I'~'OND COMM T'I''l'F:F

7th mpptj rg
hf'ld Oil

'l'hllr"C111Y, A Oc'te>I'PT 19R7
I'lt 1 p.m.

Npw YOTI<

f.llMMAPY RFCORD Cl" '1'1,0; 7tt- MF.F.'I'TNC,

CON'I'EN'I'f.

-- ------------------_ ..----- -----------------------------
• 111I~ reulld I~ ~Uhjl!l'l In nllrr,'lIoll Clltrtt'lllll\l Ihnuld he!! Knl under Iht' R1Knlturt 01 , memnrr uf the dele

I ~lltl:lIl wnt'trtled II'IIhln m" w"A 01""" d.u, OIIJubJinll/on III lhe Chlel ul' the Offin.1 Met'otd, hlllinM. SCOl'lhlll,

loorn 11('2 no, 2 IJnilrtl N.ljon~ I'lalll, 1&11,1 Inl'orp'11lltd III I1 ropy of the r",onl

87-SS9fi'i Ofi1] S (F.)

Diatr. GENERAL
A/e. 2/4 2/SR. 7
If' Octo!:'!?r 1987
ENGLISH
ORIGINAL, SPANISH

I . ..



A/C. 2/42/SH. 7
~:n9lish

Pac{e 2

'I'he meetinCj was called to order at ) p.ol.

Glo:NF.RAL DInVl'r~: (cont inued)

1. Mc KAPI.I.ANI (Albania) said that the worln economy was clearly continuing to
deteriorate, as Been in ~he falling growth rates, the incre~A!ng hudgetRfy and
trade def ici ts, the d~clining investment flow, thl' Increasing debtH ."nd tht'
uncontrol1.1ble fluctuations in commodity prices and currt'ncy rates, to which should
be addecl the (Jreed of in :ernational monopoly capitaL

2. In eX81nining the international economic situation, there was a constant neecl
to bear in mind its impact on the living condItions of the people, which were
getting worse in many countries. Famine continued to be a critical problem in
numerous developing countries, especially in Africa, and such phenomena as
'll1teracy, lack of mecHcal care and malnutrition hacl become more acute. Even the
ipdustrialized countries had not been spared the consequences of the crisis, having
experienced ~rowing unemployment, persistent inflation and rising taxes.

3. His delegation considered that the current system of international relations,
far from helping to solve economic and social problems, tended to agqravate them
and to create political ar~ social tensions which were exploited by the two
super-Powers, the United States and the Soviet Union, as a pretext for their
polici~~ of expansion and hegemony. The industrialized imperialist Powers,
ignoring the legit imate demands of the developing countries, were intensifying
their neo-colonialist exploitation and co'\verting international economic
co-oper~tion into a new instrument for increasing the dependence of the other
countries upon t:'em. The institutions of international monopolistic capital, such
as the International Monetary Fund and the World Bank, recommended that the
developing countries should adapt their economic policies to the interests of the
industrialized countries and place at the disposal of the latter their natural
resources and theIr cheap manpower.

4. Albania fully supported the efforts of those coun!=rl.es which, as
Comrade Ramiz Alia, the leader of the Albanian people, had indicated, were fighting
to liberate themselves from that grave situation and smash the economic and
political chains with which the big Powers were trying to keep them enslaved.

5. The problem of debt continued to become more acute: the de~t had alrt'ddy
surpassed the figure of SUS 1,000 billion. Many dpbtor countries were simply
unable even to pay the high interest. The granting of loans clearly constituted a
neo-colonialist instrument for hold ing peoples in its clutches and impos ing harsh
cond it ions on th,> i r economi es.

6. International trad~, too, also had a direct bearing on countries'
poSE.1biU ties for development. The neo-protectionist practices of the
industrialized countries and the manipulation of the prices of basic commodities on
the export of which so many developing countries depended, rendered the flow of
free and equal internat ional trade impossible.

/ ...



A/C.2/42/SR.7
English
Page 3

(Mr. Kapllani, Albania)

7. OWing to the principle of self-reliance and the toil and sweat of the Albanian
people, the economy of the country was developing according to plan, with steady
growth free from such negative phenome~a as crises, inflation, unemployment and the
risin~ cost of living. The eighth five-year plan (1986-1990) would n~ke it
possible to continue to satisfy the growing needs of the population while
considerably increasing the social product, national income and the total financial
income, as w~ll as ~~ports, which would grow by more than 44 per cent.

8. Albania had always advocated the development of lrade and economic
co-operation with different countries, respecting the principles of equality and
mutual benefi t.

9. Mr. RAC (India) said that the system of international economic relations
stemming from Bretton WOOds was becoming unravelled as a result of new trends and
the growing complexity and interdependence of the world economy. A new wave of
technologies, under highly concentrated control, threatened to create new strains,
and the transnationa1 corpo~ations were 'AOving goods, raw materialS, services, data
and capital freely across national frontiers. There was a need for a collective
assessAlent of the consequencej of those changes and to establish true co-operation
in order to relorm international economic relations in accordance with the
princip1~s of equity, harmony and universality, respecting the sovereign right of
States to choose their own priorities and economic poiicies and giving full
recognition to the interdependence of monetary, financial, trade and development
issues. The new international economic order was a beacon which should guide all
efforts.

10. Against the dismal state of the world economy, the seventh session of the
United Nations Conference on Trade and Development (UNCTAD) had been a limited
success, although it had not £atisfied all the aspirations of the developing
countries, it had reaffirmed the validity and strengthened the mandate of that
institution. The adoption by consensus of the Flnal Act of the seventh session of
UNCTAD would help to arrest the retreat f.rom mu1tilatera1ism and, like the recently
concluded International Conference on the Relationship betw~en Disarmament and
Development, portended a promising trend towards pragmatism, which should be
encouraged in the coming years.

11. He emphasized the importance of the ~bservations made by the representative of
Guatemala on behalf of the Group of 77, and the ministerial declarations of that
Group and of the Movement of Non-Aligned Countries.

12. One of the most serious problems of the international economy today was the
debt, the underlying causes of which were, inter alia, incre~sing protectionist
terdencies in the ~eveloped countries, high inteIest rates, falling commodity
prices anrl mis~ligned exchange rates. In order to find an equitable and
development-oriented SOlution, there was a need to hegin on the basi6 of the
consensus achieved in General Assembly resolution 41/202 and the Final Act of the
seventh session of UNCTADJ it was also necessary for Governments and financial
institutions to adopt a more responsive attitude, assume thelr responsibilities and
agree to open a political dialogue.

/ ...



A/C.2/.. 2/SR.7
Epglish
P_ge ..

(Mr. Rao, Ind ia)

13. The international fin.ncial sy~tem must also ensure a subs~antial incroase in
flow. of resources for d.v.lopment. WhUe the eighth replenishm.nt of the
International Developm.nt A••ociation had been di••ppointing, the r.cent move.
concerning the g.neral capital incr•••• of the World Bank an~ the propo.al of the
Managing Dir.ctor of the Intern.tional Mon.tary Fund to triple resourc.s for the
Structural Adjustm.nt Facility w.r. a call.e for hope.

14. He reaffirmed the il1llOrtanc. of the Integrated Progra_e for Commoditi•• and
tru.t.d that the Common Fund would become op.rational b.fo~. the end of 1987.
There was a n••j to .trengthen the multil.teral trading system and to implement the
commitment on the stand-still and roll-back of protectionist barriers.

15. Th. international co_unity must accept the implicati~ns of interdependence
and must d.free.a and revitali.e the North-Bouth dialogue with the object of
instituting structural reforms in the int.rnational .conomy.

16. On the approach to the final years of the Third United Nations Development
Decade, it was imperative to re-e.tablish the d.velopment consensus that had
prevailed in the 1960s. That coneeneus, inspired by a true urge for co-operation,
should lead to .tructural reform of the monetary, trading and payment systems. He
called for the initiation of the preparatory process for the elaboration and
adoption of an international development strategy for the Fourth United Nations
Development Decade.

17. Mr. HORN (Hungary) sai~ that the current international situation was
contradictory in terms of Hungary's development. The positive shifts in
international politics, partiCUlarly the Soviet-American dialogue, exerted a
favourable effect en international relations, but the growing complexity of the
world economic situation put Hunga~y to a hard test. Consequently, in developing
its international economic relations, it sought to ensure that they expressed
economic interests and were not based on political or ideologiual considerations.

18. The Hung.rian Government considered that more intense participaUon in the
world economy was a priority task, knowing that Hungary alone could not influence
the international environment of its economic development, that could be done only
in co-operation with other nations by recognizing and affirming common interests.

19. In view of its geoglaphical situation and traditional relations, Hungary
attached great significance to it. relations with European count~ies, with which
more than 80 per cent of its foreign trade was conducted. The gradual improvement
of the political situation in Europe favoured the development of economic and
scientific-technical relations with th~ countries of western Europe, particularly
tho.e of the European Economic COlllfluni ty, and he hoped that, at the ne~lt Vienna
meeting on co-operation in Europe, proposals would also be adopted concerning the
economic field, in the implementation of which the Economic Co_ission for Europe
would have an essential role.

20. In the current world economic situation, in which so many countries with
diverse values and interests participated, instead of being directed towards a

/



A/(;.2/42/SR.7
English
Page 5

comprehensive regulation of e~nomic co-o,eration, effolt8 IhouJ~ be focused on
prOlooting the stability and reliability of rlllations in orJer to gl.iQrantee mutual
interests. The strengthening of the security elementti of such relations was a
priority task. Accordingly, the Government cf H~hgary support~d the concept of
international economic security. It was ina~i.sjble that aome countries should
solve their economic problems to the detriment o~ other countries through
unilateral measures based exclusively on short-t~rm intere.ts, which gave rise to
8erious maltuncti,Jlls, even l,n the regulated secton of the world econ;>my and,
which, as in the past, might generate grave international conflicts.

21. On the basis of the prin~ipl.. contained in international d~u~~ts and
resolutions, le poesibility existed for the elaboration of a general code of
conduct in th", worl<.' economy, with the paeticipation of all world economic actoes,
both governmental and private. One example of that attitude was the recently
pUblished report of the World Commi~sion on Bnvironme~t and Development, chaired by
Mrs. Gro Harlem Bruntland, PrUne Minister of Norway, and entitled ·Our Common
Future·, and another was the sense of reality displ~ed by Governments at the
Ministerial Conference of GATT in the autumn of 1986 and at thJ 8~v~nth session of
UNCTAD.

22. It should be pointed out that the concept of international economic security
was not intended to replace the principles of economic co-operation set for~h in
the Charter and in the ~ighly important documents of the United Nations on the
establishment of a new international eronomic order. On the contrary, that
concept, which formed a PI,rt of the new conpreheflsive syst.J1I of international p8l1Ce
and security, shoUld be ar, instrUlllent for a new approach to the worB economy. Its
object was to ensure that common intereats motivated joint action through shared
responsibility for the future of the world. The main direction of joint action
should be determined by ('onsen8US. conpHance in good - fa i th wi th exist ing
international ag[eement~ and universal participation in international econemic
organizations might contribute to the establisHment of int6rnfttional economic
security.

23. At the first phase, it was essential to inprove mutual information greatly and
to devise a system of forecasting external risk factors that might affect
economies. For example, the international financial instituti~s might provide
assistance in mmking the economic world function more harmoniously and less
hierarchically. The existing international financial syat.m should be gradually
expanded aa a result of mutual accOIlIllooation and compromise, and it would therefore
be advisable to make it possible for those countri." which »ere currently not
members of the Interna~ional Monetary Fund or the World Bank to participate in aome
of their act~vitiee. It would also be practicable to huld periodic economic summit
conferences to f>laborate measures for the developnent 01 co-operation and t~..
strengthening {, mutual confidence. The ellltablishment of It .~·8tem of relatively
stable exchang~ rates could not be achteved merely ~ money-market interventions
but presupposed regular high-level consultations between the principal actors of
the world economy. With regard to the external debt cr19i8, it WAS necessary t~

co-ordinate concepts and practical ~asure8 in order to ensure the collective

/ ...



A/C.2/42/SR.7
;English
Page 6

(Mr. Horn, HU~)

responsibility of credi <lrfi and debtoL ... alike 6.nd to devise JI'Odalities for mutual
accommodation. Interregional conferences for businessmen should be held under the
auspices of the various United Nations regional economic commissions, particularly
for the purpose of removins obstacles to contacts. It would also be useful to
~.tabli.h special financial funds to promote the development of contacts between
small and medium-sized enterprises by financing sane of the related costs and
ensuring mutual information. Another useful instrument would 00 an "early warning
system" to forecaL . global adverse effects of disasters, whether environment~l,

natural, climatic, technological or man-made. Simildrly, in view of the current
pace of .cientific, technical adv.1ncement, it seemed dAsirable to ensure common
application of scientific results und to initiata joint research plCj(lCtR for the
purpose of pranoting the solution of the problems confronting mankind, in
particular, the international dissemination of methods and technologies designed to
prevent further deterioration of the natural environment. Equally impoc;,:ant W.\lS .;In
ongoing study of the manifold interrelationships between arms control, dis~rmament,

economic developmen~ and international econanic relations and an in-depth analysis
of the political, military, economic, enviroru~entftl and humanitarian aspects of
security.

24. Mr. TRAORE (Burkina Faso) oaid that the period IJe.tween the conclusior. of the
forty-first session of the General Assembly and the pre3ent had been characterized,
as in the past, by the same uncertainties and a~ieties. In sp~te of the many
important international meetings and conferences, thousands of children, women and
merl throughout the world had fallen victim to malnutrition, hunger and disease.
There had been an increase in the stifling ~ucden of external debt and debt service
for the developing countries and in the obstacles to trade in the developed
countries, as well as the decline in rpltl terms of commodity prices and the
deterioration of terms of trade. During the same period, many developing countries
had 8uffe(ed the violation of the right of peoples to choose their social, economic
3nd cultural system and the form of the ir development. Lastly, the industrialized
countries, in particular, had stopped taking an interest in multi13teralism and
their irreplaceable role in the dialogue between States with different political,
social and economic systems.

25. In actuality, the facts demonstrated that tt.e solution of international
economic I;)roblems did not lie in the unilatera1 prescr j ption of, naturally, very
bitter "medicines" for the developing countries. Hndoubtedly, changes were needed
in economic policies, but in the countries of t~e North as well as those of the
South. ~he time had come for the developed countries to carry out adjustments,
reforms and harmonizations of their policies at the macro-economic level. Those
changes should include disarmament, for peace and development were closely
interlinked concepts. Mankind must keep up with the pa~e of technical progress.
Science should stop isolating the germs of death and b~ccme a liberator, i.e., base
itself totally in the service of development and the callse of the peoples.

26. At the last session of th~ General Assembly, all delegations had insiBted on
the necessity of enhancing the administrative and the financial efficiency of the
Organization. During the current year, the Second Committee had to consider the

/ ...



A/C.2/42/SR.1
English
Page 1

(Mr. Traore, Burkina Faeo)

same problemE as in previous years. In fact, however, it was necessary to seek new
a~proacheB and new action-oriented methods in order tD achieve concrete and
tangible results. That was the only way to achieve true administrative and
financial ~fficiency for the Organization. The more practical the ~ction, the
fewer wouij he the problems and the items included in the agenda and the less the
Organization would expend.

21. 'rhe p"q>les of the third world, in their daily search for well-being, had
struggled ana were struggling against the hostility of nature and against the
o~stacles arising from the international situation, as was demonstrated by the
construction c~ railwayB, highways, hospitals and schools and hy intensive
reaf forestat ion.

28. At the last special session of the General Assembly on the critical economic
situat:ion In Africa, Africa had made a comr;;itment, as had' the international
community, to the achiev~ment of economic recovery and developmont. The African
States had accepted tremendous sacrifice~ and now hoped to obtain lhe requested
support from the international community.

29. Mr. CAPRIROLO (Bolivia) expressed his delegation's full support for the
stll~ement by the Chairman of the Group of 11 and said th1:ot the international
economic situation was not very encouraging for the de~eloping countries. Low
pricing of commodities on the international market ~nd the recrudescence of
protectionist trends, the restriction of financial flows for development, t ..e
hiscorically high ~nternational interest rates, persisted. With regard to Latin
America, the crisis had been one of the most acute in recent years.

30. The sJow recover.y of the economies of the ~cvelC'1'ped countries had not had
positive results mainly because of the low level of primary commodity prices and
high in ~erest rates. The unfavourable internat ional cl imate and the .• low capac i ty
to respond of the relatively less developed countries had been reflected tn a
reduction in the wall-being of their societies. World economic prospects were
characterized by a high degree of uncertainty bec6use of the persistence of
macro-economic imbalances in thu developed market economies. it was expected that
the growth rates of their economie8 would slow down. That state of affairs was due
to the fact that the centrally planned economies wer~ seeking in isolation to
rerned~ the imbalances inherent in the logic of the system and in the changes which
technological develq>ment produced in them and in the world economy as a whole.
Such changep, tended to cancel out the comparative advantages of the economies of
the developing countries and lowered the demand for their products. At the sa~

time, a new international division ()f labOur was tending to umeI'ge with an
exclusi ve nat'Are which reduced the options for part icJ.pat ion.

31. In today's interdependent world, the lack of macro-economic discipline in the
developed countries waa disquieting, as was the search for concerted policies
outslde the multilateral frame,",ork, which did not take into account the impact of
their inplementation on oth"!r countries. It was imperative to renew the
North-South dlalogu6 on a permanent basis and to strengthen the supreme forum of

/ ...



A/C.2/42/SR.7
English
P&ge lJ

(Mr. Caprirolo, Bolivia)

the United Nations in order to ~,rk out solutions based on the principles of
co..xistence and co-operation betwe.... nations, as laid down in the Plan and
Programme of Action on thp Establishment of a New International Economic Order.

32. Th.re were no universal solutions for overcoming the crisis: the development
strategies must be applied to match the structurrl characteristics and the needs ~f

each country. At the moment, man~ of the efforts made to overcome the cridls had
been impeded by unfavourable international economic conditions, which had resultad
in a high social cost. It was therefore ab901utely essential to achieve a more
favourable international ~limate which would allow countries to go forward along
the path of adjustment with growth.

33. The solution of the crisis depended not only on the efforts of the developing
countries but also on the attitude and the responsibility of the developed
countries. It was therefore disquieting to note the ur'drtainty of the present
situation, the intensification o~ trade restrictions, the use of export subsidies
and the rising trend of intttrnational interest rates, which made the recovery of
the developing countries difficult and tended to offset the progress already made.

34. The development crisis had been particularly acute in Bolivia: the main
economic and social indicators had fallen, macro-economic imbalances had increased,
th~re was hyperinflation, a drastic f~ll in the GDP, in investmen~ and savin9s
coefficients, and so on. In 1985 the Constitutional Government of Bolivia had
instituted the New Economic Policy with the dual aim, in a first phase, of
r~medying the imbalances and, i~ a second phase, of introducing structural changes
which would modernize the productive apparatus and the export platform. Bolivia
had succeeded in overcoming its monetary and fiscal imbalanceR and in introducing
reforms which had modernized the institutions and machinery of State control.
However, the process of eco~onlic recovery was being affected by the prices of its
main export products, which ~t the moment continued to be low.

35. The successes achieved by Bolivia and other countries were const~ntly

threatened by the plevailing external conditions, a fact which made the prospects
of permanent' recovery doubt fu!. It was necessary to generate conditions which
would ma~e it possible to create a climate of trust and to g~ forward by
strengthening the system of multilateral trade. In that sense, the launching of a
new round of GATT negotiat:ions was a positive step.

36. With regard to the debt problem, he felt that periodic adjustments were
palliatives which merely prolonged an intolerable situation. It was vital to
reduce the burden of external debt-servicing through imaginative solutions which
released resources .csential for development. The amount of official development
assistance must be increased. Any lasting solution must necessarily be linked with
the creation of a climate which guaranteed sustained economic growth.

37. Co-operation between developing countries must deal with commercial, financial
and technological problems. It was absolutely essential to eliminate the obstacles
which impeded integration and economic complementarity between countries and

/ ...



A/C.2/42/Sk.
Engli.h
Page 9

(Mr. Capr 1.rolo, BoUvia)

regions. Bolivi~ was a land-locked country, a situation which had been imposed on
it by Chile .ince the Pacific war of 1879. Por Bolivia, the lack of a .ea coa.t
was an additional factor which limited its development. It added to the co.t of
external trade an invisible amount, which was reckoned approximately at 35 per cent
of total exports and imrorts, due to losses, ~elays and the improper handling of
commercial shipments. At the moment, that co.t became still higher a. a re.ult of
free transit practic~9 which were not always compatible with the concept. and terms
of ~.tablished treaties and agreements.

38. The United Nations was the ideal forum for dialogue between all States in
order to go forward in the search for joint SOlutions to th~ crisis and to
re-e.tablish fairer and juster relations of interdependence, which would allow a
better climate of international coexistence aimed at the establishment of a new
international eovnomic order.

39. Mr. SOKOLEN~O (Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Republic) said that the forty-second
8es.ion was being ~3ld at a time when the world was faced with the alternative of
moving towards the abyss of a nuclear war or toward. a non-violent and just new
international order. The debates in the plenary showed that most countries had
cho.en to strengthen thtdr security by beneficial mutual co-operation. That was a
po.itive step, since an improvement in the world political clim~te would have
favourable reper~ussionB on economic development, on trade and on ecientific and
technical exchangei..

40. A rec.nt joint statemellt by the States Parties co the Warsaw Tr.aty (A/42/354)
analys.d the means of ov.rcoming .conomic d.velopment and .stablishing a new
international economic order. The document .tre.sed the need to achieve as soon a.
possible a gradual reduction in armaments a. an ••••ntial first .tep in order to
u•• the resources thus nleas.d to tackl. the "\II[ioo. economic problems facing
mankind. Along those lines, it waE gratifyin~ that the Soviet Union and the united
Stat.s had r.ached an agreement in principle "hich, for the first time in history,
would lead to a real reduction in nucl.ar ars,anals.

41. The world economic situation was not enc'Ouraging. As stated in the World
Economic Survey, the financial crisis, the high ir.t.rest rates, the flight of
capital, the brain drain and the inequalities betw••n the price. of manufacture.
and of pr imary cOllltlOd i tillS had resu lted in a state of inju.tice and economic
instability which paralysed th~' long-term efforts of the developing countries.

42. The solution of the serious economic probl.ms which had accumulated required a
re.truc tur ing of int.ernat ional economic re lat ion. br..ed on a reaUst ic rec09lli tion
of the diver.ity of interests and also of their mutual independence. That required
a .earch for harmonious solutions which benefited all and avoided the path of
confrrntation. It ~as theretore n.ce.sary to adopt a n.w approach and a n.w
philoeophy which, on the basis of the po.itive experience of the past, would
succeed in r.-.stablishing a c~imate of confid.nce and mutual co-operation in
international economic rslatiolls.

/ ...



A/C.2/42/SR.7
English
P~e: 10

(Mr. SOkolenko, Ukrainian SSR)

43. The socialist ~ountries, including t~e Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Republic,
were following thht line of action. Their proposals were aimed at achieving
6tabilitj in the ~~~t~~ u~ ~conomic relations through the necessary restructur.ng,
which would pave the way fe: an authentic climate of economic security. However,
it would be impossible to create such a climate while whol~ regjon~ 0, the world
were teetering on the brink of hunger and death an~ millions of persona were
weighed down by the intoleiable burden of externa~ debt. That situation had been
brought Jut in a re~ent article entitled "Reality and safeguards for a secure
world" published by Mr. Gorbachev, the General Secretary of the Communist Party of
the Soviet D.don. The various proposllls put forward by the socialist countries and
designed to achieve international economic s£curity in no way con~licted with
United Nations documents referr i09 to the establishment of t~.e new international
~conomic order. Hence, his delegation felt that, with those proposals, progress
was bni09 made in achieving the fundamental aims of the United Netions in the
economic Held.

44. The main impediment to overcoming the developing countries current economic
plight was lhe serious ~roblem of those countrie~' external debt, which already
exceeded $1 bHlion. Another serious problem was poe"!'1c by high interest rates and
the financial and human resource crisis 1n d~velopi09 countries caused by the
direct transfer of thone resources to creditol' countries over many years. The cost
of such transfers in 1986 could be reckoned at ;""OtWl'':.1 $20 billion and
$25 billion. The Group of 77 had proposed in that regard that an irternational
conference should be convened to co""ider financial and monetary problems. A
system of international economic ~~u~ity would also help solve those problems by
putting an end to the prevailing arbitratiness in international trade relutions in
the form of embargoes, boy~~tts and trade blockades as well as protectionist
measures and other types of trade restrictions that were often employed to exert
political pressure. Such a systflm would also allow the international community to
adopt me.sures agai~st unacceptable activities such as thos~ perpetrated by the
racjst Pretoria regime.

45. Two major events relating to United Nations d~v~lopment activities had t3ken
place in 1987: ti, International Conference on t,he Rtl..l.ationship between
Disarmament and Development and the seven_I} session of UNCTAD. In both cases, the
debates had taken place in an atmosphere devoid of confrontation. The overwhelming
majority of States acknowledged the importance of disarmament in freeir.g the
~e80urces ne~ed for developmentJ moreover, the consensus reached on the Final Act
of the UNCTAD se~sion gave reason to hope that th~ role of the United Nations in
the field of international trade and development would be strengthened. The
outcome of the fortieth sep,sion of the Economic Commission for Europe was equally
8ignificant.

46., Development issues were closely related to environmental iSdU"!S1 the
I :.cleasi09 deteri.oration of the environment was a source of growing concern to the
international community, as the debate on the various documents consi~ered at the
fourteenth session of t',e UNEP Gover.-dng Council had shown. The time had come to
draw ~p an international strategy for environmental protection and the rational
exploitation of resources.

/ ...



AjC.2/42jBR.i
English
Page 11

(Mr. Sokolenko, Ukraini.n BSR)

47. The current year marked the seventieth anniversary of the Great October
Socialist F~volution and the e~tablishment of Soviet power in what was now the
Ukrainian SO'iet Soc~alist ~~public. The experience of those years had shown that
any realistic development strategy implied an integrated and rational ordering of
the economy that afforded protection from external preSBures. That could be
achieved only through the intensive development of the public sector and the
application of modern and efficient planning methods. After many accomplishments
to date, new needs had arisen which his country was p~epared to Me~t by
intensifying production and improving its quality an~ by forging new economic ti.s
wi th the outside '«>rld and part icipat ing more fully in the international divie ton
of labour.

48. For many y~ar~, the Ukrainian SSR had helped the developing countries make
e~~nomic progress primarily by strengthening their public sector as a key tactor in
autonomous development. His country also regularly supported the training of
specialists from developing countries, eit~er directly or through the United
Nations or other international organizations.

49. II~ conclusion, he recalled that the Second Committee was the appropriate forum
for con~idering international economic probl~m&' he therefore hoped that ~ll who
took part in its discussions wculd use that opportunity to seek constructive
solutions to those problems, a task in which his delegation would participate with
complete dedication.

50. Mr. RAKOTQNAIVQ (~adagascar) expressed regret and indignation at th~ fact that
the world e~~namic crisis which had begun in the early 1980s persisted, as did the
problams of development, some of which ~ad grown worse, encountered by third wo~ld

countries.

51. That crisis could be seen in numerous phenomena, such as chronically
stagnating growth, the slow and ~enuous recovery ·in ftome developed countries, the
prolongerl recession affecting most developing countries and the uncertainty and
disequilibria which marked the ~~ntemporary world e~nomic climate.

52. Both the Economic and Social C<'uncil and UNCTAD had considered those phenomena
in depth, and there was no need ~o draw further attention to them. However, the
persiste~~ nature of those Froblems once again highlighted the inadequacies of the
international sy.. j •• , and the policies applied thus far to solve them.

53. F"c while extf:"r1.al debt absorbed a growing percer.t"ge of export earnings,
thereby reduc ing the volUl'l.l! of resources available to the developing countries tor
development, the stagnation 1n official development assistance, the reduction ot
resource flows towards developing countries and the reverse transfer of re.ource.
from those countri'!r to developed countries placed the developing countries in a
serious predicat'lent.

54. Economic performance had been particularly lack-lustre in Afric~, even though
African t;:Ountries had made enormous efforts at structural adjustment and recovery:

/ ...



A/C.2/42/SR.7
89g118h
Page 12

(Mr. Rakotonaivo, Madagascar)

in 1986, ovorall growth had been 1.2 per cent, as compared with 3 per cent in 1985
and 2.8 per cent in 1984. Moreover, between 1985 and 1986, export earnings had
fallen from '64 billion to '45 billion,lnd debt-servicing payments had incressed
from '3 billion to '14 billion. The externai deficit, which had stood at
'4.2 bill~on in 1985, had risen to '15 billi~ in 1986.

55. In other words, the international community had not responded positively to
the appeals made through the United Nations Programme of Action for African
800nanic Recovery and Oevelopnent 1986-1990. It was to be hoped that, dud09 the
current session of the General Assembly, the measures required to rectify that
situation would be adopted.

56. It whould also be noted that efforts to deal with the crisis were st~ll

inadequate, 3S was obvious from the proliferation of irdivldual initiatives. Nor
had the debate at the seventh session of UNCTAD, a forum in which current problems
were approached from a global perspective, led to specific c~itment8 with reqarG
to tho.e problems.

57. Nevertheless, it was interesting to note that a number of positiv~ new ideas
had ..erged in recent years. There was a growing consensus regarding a
Nrevitalization of growth and developmentN

• For such innovations to yield positive
re.'llts, however, they must be based on a realistic asse.sment of interdependence,
on an understanding of the seriousness and magnitude of exiati.ng problema and on a
genu in" cClllllli tment to meet i09 the challflmges that arose.

5 P • In any event, the developing countries' ability to reach that goal would
depend primarily on the industrialized countries' ability to create a world
economic climate conducive to economic expansion. Furthermore, the economic
revitalization of the developing countries was synonymous with! improved market
acce.s for their 6xportB, the stabilization of commodity prices at higher levels, a
reduction in interest rates, greater exchange-rate stability, eqUitable
cost-sharing in adjustment efforts, massive transfers of reSources to the
developing ooufltries, the adoption of emergency measures to solve the debt problem,
a~ the introduction of structural rO!forms in the inte-:national monetal/, financial
Gnd trading system.

59. In the ooming weeks there would ~ anple opportunity to consider issue. t~at

had been the subject of agreement at the recent UNCTAO session. Everything would
depend on the international community's ability to put tho proposed measures into
practice. For its part, his delegation welcomed the initiatives dopted in that
connection by some industrialized countries and urgeu other such countries to
follow their example.

60. As the United Nations was still the appropriate forum for co-ordinating
efforts to achie.e that end, he believed that its capacity for action must be
.trengthened, which is why he followed the current restructuring process with
intere.t. That process must in no way impede the necessary democrati~ation of the
way in which the wor'Id economy was managed.

/ ...



A/C.2/42/SR.7
English
Paye 13

61. Mr. AL-MULLAH HU88AN (Iraq) ~aid that, in spite of the success achieved
recently by some industrialized countries, the international economic crisis, which
had bs~n going on ~ince the beginning of the decade, was still having a negative
Lmpact on the entire W?~ld.

62. In the developin9 countries, the crisis was causing an enormous number of
econanic, social ant' filla"cial prdllems which grew worse every day and paralysed
their developmtnt, That in turn pr~ver;~~ them from assuming their financial
obligations in g~n~r.dl.

63. One of the main characteristics of the crisis, and one wbose negative effecta
were particularly harsh in the developing collntries, was the unprecedented (Jrop in
the prices of those ~untrie.' commodities, and consequently in their income. That
phenanenon, which had axtr.mely detrimental etfects on the developing oountries,
was the result of the protectionist measures taken by the developed countries to
protect their own ecenoulic intere.ts.

64. The situation wa" coqx>unded by the reversed flQlolS of resources and the
crushing external debt burden, both of which factors also served to paralyse
development in the third world. The external debt problem, which had very seriou.
political a~l social dimensions, was the direct result of the unfair nature of th~

current international economic system. In other ~rd., international economic
relations and imbalances in the international monetary ard financial system were
aggravating the probJ,m ot the external debt.

65. The debt problem, therefore, was L political problem which must be solVed with
tbe participation of the debtor countries, the crp.ditor countries, the
international financial institutions and commercial bank~.

66. Although his deleg.tion recognized the developing countries' internation~l

obligationd to their creditors, it feared that those obligations would exceed their
economic capacity unless the international com 'JAi ty found a rapid and equitable
solution to the debt problem, and reiterated its view thet there was a dir~c link
between solving that probl~m and est'.blillhing a new international economic order.

67. His del~gation reaffirmed the need to give high ptiority to the question of
food in order to put an end to poverty, hunger, malnutrition and infant mortality.
Food security in developing countries mUBt be guaranteed, and that guarantee
required the implementation of the relevant resolutions adopted by the United
Nations and the promotion ot international, regional and Bubregional CO-0P4ration
in that field. In art) event, his Governm'ant categorically condemned the UBe of
f~od aid as a weapon of pclitica 1 pressure.

68. Turning to the question of science and technology, he reaffirm6d the need to
strengthen the acientitic and technological capacity of the developing countries.
That was eBBent ial it they were to Plake progress, and he expressed regret that the
reSOlutions adopt~d by the United Nations Conference on Science and Technology for
Development were not being implemented.

/ ...



A/C.2/42/S.:.7
Engl ish
page 14

(Mr. AI-Mullah Hussan, Iraq)

69. As a member of the Group of 77, Iraq also attach~d great importance to
economic co-operation among developing countries, which was another element of a
new international economic order based on fairness and jl,etice. In that regard,
the Caracas pl'ogranne of action must be the basic framework for the adoption of
specific measures to pror.~te co-operation among developing countries, and he again
atressed the importance of .uch co-operation a8 a means tor guaranteeing tho.e
countries' self-sufficiency and independence. Fu~thermore, the resolutions adopted
by the United Nations to promote economic co-operation among developing countries
must be implemented.

70. The establishment of IS new hternat ional economic: order in keeping wi th the
interest. of all people8 could be based only on the necessary political will to
promote dialogue aimed at reforming t~e international economic system. In that
connection, his delegation reaffirmed its view that UNCTAD, which must ~
strengthened as a negotiating mechanism in the field of trade and development, had
an important role to play in the restructuring of international relations.

71. There was no doubt that international negotiations, the revitalization of
international co-operation and the strengthening of multilaterali-m "'ere essential
in order to reorganize and promote a fair and stabl~ development of the world
economy which would put an end to the widening gap between the developing and the
developed c~untries.

72. Mr. ALl (Democratic Yemen) aaid that, although the inflation rate and nominal
interest rates had decreased in 1986, t~e world economic situation was still tense
because of imbalances in trade and payments, the burden of debt servicing and lower
COIlIlIodity prices. The economic growth of most countries was still r.eglig~ble, and
there had been an increase in the reverse transfer of reSources trom developing to
developed countries.

73. The growth rate of 2 per c~nt to 3 per cent forecast for the next few years
was not enou~h to reactivate international trade, improve commodity prices and
relieve the ,debt burden.

74. That discouraging situation cast doubt on the validity of the current
development strategy, relying as it did on international good will to solve the
unescapable problem8 confronting the world economy, which required the adoption of
broad Ifteasures by all countrh,s. It was pointles8 to continue discU8.ing
adjustment policies designed to le8sen the severity of the crisis if that
adjust~ent was not accompanied by a number of measures to liberalize international
trade, ease the terms of financing, increase the volume of capital flows and aeek
fair solutions to the debt problem.

75. In addition to the recessary structural reforms in the developing countries,
economic recover~meant resolving the meat urgent aspects of the criaia ~Irough the
necessary political will, re8tructuring international economic relations and giving
further impetus to the international negotiations on monetary and financial
questions.

/ ...



A/C.2/42/SR• 7
English
Page 15

(Mr. Ali, Democratic Yemen)

76. To that er..J, it was necessary, on the one hand, to implement the Charter of
Economic Rights and Dutl~8 of states and establish the new international economic
order and, on the other hand, to adopt practical and concrete m8ftsureS to
revitali.e development ~t the world le\ll. Thoa~ meusures could include ~he

formulation, in the developed countries, of macro-economic polici~s aim. ~t

reducing interest rates, correcting exchange rates, reducing protecti'
pre.sures, increasing trade and financial flows and reversing the trelll.. "ards
lower commodity prices.

77. Furthermore, a world development strategy must be adopted in order to solve
the debt problem on the basis of shared responsibility and taking into account the
debt-servicing ability of the various countries and their development needs.

78. The detecior n of the international trade system must also be halted by
applying marJ f' e and non-discriminatory rules and stlengthening the role of
the General Agre, .c on Tadffs and Trade (GATT). In that connection, his country
welcomed to the new round of trade neqoti~tlons begun in Punta del Este (Uruguay)
in 1986 and appreciated the efforts of m to imptove international co-ope£ation
in the field of teade. Democratic Yemen welcomed the statement by the Soviet
Union ex,ressing its desire to establish std~le relations with GATT and participate
fully in the Uruguay round of multilateral trade negotiations•.

79. Likewise, the generalized system of preferences should be imprOVed and more
favourable treatment should be given to products from the least developed countries
by facilitating their free access to in~ernational markets and eliminating
non-tariff measures detrimental to their export8.

9', The Integrated Programme for Commodities must also be implemented in order to
ilTprove the conditions for marketing the products of dttveloping countries by
setting stable and remunerative prices and putting into operation the Common Fun~

for COlllllOdi ties.

81. It was also necessary to achieve the objective set with regard to the aDA
level to be reached during the Third United Nations Development Decade and carry
out the other measures set forth within the framework of the sut'lItantial New
Programme of Action for the 1980s for the Least Developed Countries and satisfy the
urgent liquidity ne~ds of the developing countries.

82. His delegation hoped that all those concerns would be reflected in the
resolutions and decisions adopted by the Committee at the end of ~ts work.

83. Mr. KASRAWr (Jordan) said that the Final Act adopted by consensus at the
seventh session of UNCTAD, while not meeting the demands of all parties, was an
encouraging sign, a8 was the progress made at the r ,cent IMF/World ~ank meeting
with rll!9ard to augmenting th'! resources of those institutions. MOLe had to be d::''le
in that direction to create a more supportive international environment for
development and to tackle the problems of unemployment, debt servicing and
maintaining living standards.

I ...



A/C.2/42/SR.7
Engliah

'Page 16

(Mr. Kasrawi, Jordan)

84. A number of salient features of the world economic situation were of
particular relevance. First, although it had increased in 1986, the rate of growth
in world outp.!t remained insufficient to permi t unemployment problems to be dealt
with in both the industrialized and in the developing countries. Seoon~, the
recent rise in growth rates in the developing countries did not necessarily mean an
improv..nt in real per capita incane, which, as was indicated in the annex to the
statement of the Under-Secretary-General for International Economic and Social
Affair., would stagnate in Latin America and fall in Africa. In the net
energy-exporting countries as well, a decline in real income was taking pl~.e which
would adversely affect other countries, especially labour-exporting countries,
whose problems had still to receive the attention they deserved. Despite the
recent increase in aome commodity prices, the terms of trade of the developing
countries which, as the Director-General for Development and International Economic
Co-operation had said in his statement, had experienced a loas of over
SUS 90 billion over the past ytlar. That deterioration, a lded to the cost of
servicing the external debt, made it increasingly difficult for the developing
countries to finance the volume of imports that they needed to maintain their
econanic developnent.

8S. '['he conclusion was very clear: in order to re~tivate growth, the developing
countries needed ,nore financial resources, which would enable them to bridge the
gaps between the investment demand and nat ional saving. and imports and exports.
As was rtated in the Trade and ~~~lopment Report, 1987, adjustment measures had
mainly affected investment, as in many countries the structure of trade and
production had prevented reduced consumption from being reflected in increased
exports. In order to restimulate invelJtme.:lt, w,iich was the engine of growth, those
countries needed to receive more external financial resources.

86. Africa's economic situation, especially in the low-income countriea and the
~)untries of the sub-Saharan region, remained a matter of serious concern. There
was therefore a need for prompt implementation of the United Nations Programme of
Action for African Econanic Recovery anft D<evelopnent.

87. On the subject of the environment, hf' stressed the importance of the agreement
on the ozone layer recently reached under the auspices of the United Nati< ,s. A
distinction should be made in that sphere between problems of environmental
conservation, such as protection of forests, the prevention of desertification and
other related issues, and the problem of incorporating environmental conldderations
into production decisions, which, because it entailed increaaes in the costs of
production, raised particular problen~ and urgently necessitated an intornational
agreement.

88. He proclaimed his faith in the capacity of the machinery of the United Nations
and the other existing international instit '-ions to arrive at productive results
through effective international co-operati0

!9. Mr. KIILU (Kenya) said thftt the current state of the world econany showed that
situatio~ had remained largely the same over the past few years. Although the

/ ...



A/C. 2/42/SR. 7
English
Page 17

<Mr. Kiilu, Kenya)

global econany had registered a modest expansion of 3 per cent in 1986, which was
in any case lower than in 1985, there were still ul1stable factors and uncertainties
which, if not redressed, threatened to perpp.tuate the present grim scena~io,

characteriz~d by declining growth, mounting external debt, high real interest
rates, fluctuations in exchange rates, high and rising levels of prot~tion, and
falling c~mmodity prices. The latter had reeulted tn persistent structural
imbalances between the developed and th& dev~loping countries. The gap bet~e~ the
r'ch North and the poor South continued to widen. At the same time, the world
econany was becaning increasingly interdepenl:ent, partly because of the rapid
advances in scienc~ and technology. In such a world, the fate of one nation or
group of nations could not be separated from the others. Thus the existing
economic system needed far-rp.aching reforms, i~cluding the restructuring of the
international mone.:.ary, financial and tradlnq systems. Th~t objective called for
co-operative effortf' from all States within d strengthened multO-ateral framework.

90. Although the General Assembly could not solve all the world's problems at a
single session, it could not afford to show itself helpless in the face of problems
such a. the deterioration of the international trading sy~t~m, the collapse of
~ommodity prices, the mounting external uebt and the alarming reverse transfer of
resources.

91. The developed countries should improve the international economic environment,
so that they did not find themselves <as in recent years) deprived of a wide market
for th~ir goods, services and capital because the development process was at a
stand£ltill.

92. It was generally agreed that the outcome ot the seventh session of UNCTAD had
been a turning point in the process of the North-South dialogue. The adoption of
the Final Act by consensus bore testimony to the political will and determination
of the i~ternational community seriously to approach the current econanic malaise.
The Final Act embo~ied a number of policy approachee and measures for revitalizing
development, growth llnd international trade through international .:o-operatio•• for
development. The Second Committee, too, had a leading role to play in shaping the
modalities geared to putting into ~ffp.ct the cenclusions 5greed on at UNCTAD.

93. Four years had ~assed since the e'1II!rgence of the debt crisis, yet a solution
remained elusive. The question arose, therefore, whether the existing
international finanetal and monetary system was appropriate for dealing with the
problem. The fact that the debt burden had worsened, particularly in parts of
Latin America and in most African countrios, was a clear indication that the
strategy adopted so far had not worked. Not only did it place the onus of
adjustment action unfairly on debtor countries, but it alao failed to guarantee an
adequate supply of resources from ~ither c mmercial banks or multilateral lending
institutions. At a time when the cndebted developing countries were in dire need
of resources to back up their adjustment measures, there hs6 been a net outflow of
resources from them to donor countries and institutions as a resuit of net
financial transters and losses in terms .'f trade which, aC"cord ing to available
st:atistics, had amounted to $US 24 milUcn and $US 94 b1llion, respectively, in

/ ...



A/C.2/42/SR.7
English
.age 18

(Mr. Kiilu, Kenya)

1986 alone. Coupled with declining financial flows from all sources, that
situation had seriously affected capital accumUlation and thus prevented
growth-oriented adjustment.

94. Any action taken on debt should not only take account of the stabilization and
structural reform measures adopted by developi~ countries to mobilize and retain
dOlllestic savings, but also guarant.ee the timely aV4ilability of Adequate financing
to support those reforma. Creditor countri~. "hould also c~eate an international
environment conducive to growth in the ~eveloping countries and endeavour to
stabilize their exchange and interest rated ill order to keep their markets open to
goods exported by indebted countries.

95. Africa had undoubtedly been the continent hardest hit by the world economic
criais and the situation had been compoUnded by drought and desertification, with
the consequent threat of widespread famine for millions of Africans. In the pdSt
year, the African Governments had devoted con~ide~able effore to adopting bold and
painful adjustment policies. ODA resources had not been forthcoming, however, even
when the Governments in question had honoured all their commitments under the
Programme of Action for African Economic Recover.y and Development. New ~nvestments

had not been forthcoming either and there h~d be~n a net transfer of resources from
the African countries to their developed parl'1ers. Again, very few creditor
countries had as yet converted part of the at ficial debt of sub-Saharan Africa into
grants or announced a moratorium on debt paymenta.

96. Kenya shared fully the concern of the United Nations Secretary-Gener~l at the
failure of the international community to provide adequate support, particularly in
terms of financial fl'~s, for the adjustment measureu undertaken by the African
Governments. His delegation joined in the appe~l to the internation~l community to
play its rightful role in assisting Africa, amoPg other things, by substantially
increasing ODA and other aid for capital development and by establishing
r..unerative commodity prices.

97. The CHAIRMAN said that the Angolan del~ation had. asked to be included on the
list of speakers tor the general de':.ate, after ~he list had been closed. In view
of the time available and the number of speakers on the list, however, if there
were no object~ons, he would include the Angolan delegation.

98. It was so decided.

99. Mr. MAQUIElRA (Chile), speaking in exerciee of the right of cepl}, said that
although Bolivia had 110 coastline, it was not at all la.ld-locked. On the :::ontrary,
it had a perpetual r~ght of free transit throug~ Chilea~ territory and use of the
ports of Arica and Antofagasta. At Arica, it h~d the use of six berths,
3,000 square metres of covered storage space &00 6,000 square metres of open space,
and at Antofagasta it had the u&a of six bertha, 3,000 square metres of c0vered
atorage space and 52,000 square metres of open space. In add~tion, Chile had built
and entirely financed a railway used specifically to transport goods from Bolivia
to the Pacific coast. The annual transport c~~a~ity of that railway wa3 180,000
tons, of which Bolivia had used only 70,000 tom~ in 1986, which meant, in effect,

/ ...



A/C.2/42/SH.7
":n'11I.sh
Pa<w 19

thilt Chile was subsidizin'1 Bolivl.a's foreiqn trade. Chile had also paved the
Arlca-La Paz highway up to the border between the two countriefl, at a cost of
$US 100 mi I lion. 'rhere were also joint commisflions between the two count ies to
d iBCUSS all transi t-re tated iSflues and at no time had Bolivia made in those
commisBlons the alleqations it had just made in the Second Committee. 'I'hat there
w(~re no problems in that area was borne out by the' fact that Bolivia had not seen
the need to ratify the 196 '-, Hew York Convention on Transi t Trade of Lanrl-Locked
f>tatefi.

The meeting rose at 5.45 p.m.


